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ANNUAL REPORT -

DIRECTORS REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Board of Directors (BOD) of Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited, the Management
Company of Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (POIAAF) is pleased to present the audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Economic Review

The financial year 2014 was the first year of new government of PMLN in which the economy has shown
some improvement on the back of economic and fiscal reforms. Despite the current political turmoil due
to sit-ins that has been prolonged for more than a month, several steps taken by PMLN government to
support economic growth and to enhance investments from local as well as foreign side has changed the
country’s pxcture on international forum. Privatization process of different State Owned Entities (SOEs)
coupled with issuance of Eurobond in International market is also resumed by the government to further
support the economic progtess.

Foreign exchange reserves stood at USD 14.14bn for the period ended FY 14. At the time of taking over
the government, foreign exchange reserves was at deteriorating position so the new government signed a
loan facility from International Monetary Fund (IMF) of USD 6.7bn to avoid default on the debt service
as the country’s balance of payment position was in doldrums. Furthermore, inflows from 3G/4G auction
coupled with inflows from Eurobond issuance and foreign remittances supported the foreign exchange
reserves. )

On the back of improved macroeconomic figures, Pakistan’s GDP growth rate is expected to rise by 4.1%
for the fiscal year ended 2014 as compared to 3.6% in the same period last year. During the year, the CPI
inflation remained near the target set by the government of 8.0%. The average CPI inflation for the year
FY 14 was recorded as 8.6% as compared to 7.4% for the year of FY13.

On account of foreign portfolio investment (FPI), which includes foreign public investment, Pakistan
attracted USD 2.74bn during the July 2013-June 2014 peripd, more than 21 times higher than the FPI
worth USD 124.2mn received in the preceding fiscal year. Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) also recorded
a growth of 11.99% on year over year basis, as FDI for the fiscal year period ended 2014 stood at USD
1.63bn as compared to USD 1.46bn in the corresponding period last year.

Current account posted dkﬁeﬁcit of USD 2.9bn (1.2% of GDP) in the period of FY 14 as compared to a
deficit of USD 2.3bn in FY13. Current account deficit increased due to decline in the service sector as
country received less Coalition Support Fund (CSF) during the year as compared to previous year.

Capital Market:

Relatively dull performange in June 2014 did not impede KSE-100 to post a hefty return for the full year
FY14. KSE-100 Index maintained its upward drive and posted a return of 41.16% during the year and
remained the best performing equity market in the region during the year, followed by India and
Vietnam’s equity market with returns of 31.03% and 20.16% respectively. During the period, the index
rose by 8,647 points and closed at all time high level of 29,652.53 points. The KMI-30 Index also gained
a decent return of 29.89% and closed at 47,686.55 points. The foreign participation in capital market
further supported the market. FIPI witnessed an inflow of USD 256mn in FY 14 as compared to an mﬂow
of USD 567mn in FY13
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Operating Performance

The Fund during the year ended June 30, 2014 earned a total income of PKR. 31.239mn (2013: PKR.
37.339mn) . The income for the year comprised mainly profit earned sales of investment of PKR.13.378,
(2013: PKR. 30.835mn), profit on bank deposit amounting to PKR.5.625mn (2013: PKR. 3.720mn) and
dividend income amounting to PKR.1.293mn (2013: PKR. 2.208mn) and profit on sukuk certificates
PKR.4.596mn (2013: PKR. 4.344mn). The unrealized loss on investments at fair value through profit or
loss for the year was PKR.4.428mn (2013: PKR. 1.974mn) and reversal of Provision (2013: Provision)
was Rs. 10.775mn (2013: PKR. 1.794 mn). After accounting for expenses of PKR.9.692mn (2013: PKR.
11.098mn), the net income for the year was PKR.18.527mn (2013: PKR. 23.026mn). The net assets of the
fund as at June 30, 2014 were PKR.106.844mn (2013: PKR. 135.973mn), resulting in a net asset value of
PKR.53.28/unit. (2013: PKR.63.29/unit).

Empbhasis of Matter Paragraph

The Auditors has drawn attention attention to note 1.6 to the accompanying financial statements which
explains the current status of the Management Company’s license to provide asset management services
and details of the fact that the Board of Directors have concluded a scheme of arrangement for
amalgamation with another assets management company. The merger is subject to the approval of
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The Auditors have however remarked in their report
that their opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

#
4

Future Outlook
Current political turmoil may hamper government’s progress as IMF has deferred its fifth tranche, which
was to be received by Pakistan in the first week of September 2014. IMF is also showing serious concern
on the on going political zigzag and also delayed the forth review. Despite the current political
uncertainty, the government will continue with its reforms agenda and carry on its efforts to attract further
investments from foreign investors and restore international lenders’ interest in the economy of Pakistan.

Investment Policy i

.
Investment Policy of the Fund is stated in Clause 2.2 of the Offering Document. The Investment Policy of
the Scheme is constructedito help ensure overall compliance with the investment objective stated above.
The Investment Policy shall focus on selecting investments, executing transactions and constructing a
portfolio to match the investment objective. The Investment Policy of the Scheme shall select instruments
from within the specified Authorized Investments as stated in Clause 17.7 of the Offering Document.

-

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

e These financial statements, prepared by the management of the Fund, present its state of affairs
fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and movement in unit holders’ fund.

e Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

{

i
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e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed
and explained.

o The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored: and ’

e There are no significant doubts upon the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern other than
that disclosed in note 1.4 to the financial statements.

e The Directors, Executives of the Management Company including their spouse and minor
children do not hold any interest in the units of the Fund other than those disclosed in the
financial statements.

¢

e Pattern of units holding is given on note 20.3 to the financial statements.

e Key financial data for five years given in note 20.2 to the financial statements.
e The number of board and committees’ meeting held during the year and attendance by each
director is as follows

Board Audit Committee HR&R Committee
Designation  gyigible to Eligible to Eligible to
attend Attended attend Attended attend Attended

H. E. Yahya Bin Said Bin Abdullah ~ Chairman 10 8 0 0 0 0

Al-Jabri ’ g

Agha Ahmed Shah, Ly Director 10 8 0 0 0 0

Mr. Humayun Murad . Director 10 8 4 3 1 1
 Mr. Parveiz Usman ‘ Director 10 3 0 0 0 0

M. Sulaiman Hammad Al Harty » Director 10 - s 4 2 0 0

Mr. Ali Said Ali Director 10 7 0 0 0 0

Mr.Saif Said Salim Al Yazidi l Director 10 5 4 3 1 1

Ms.Hina Ghazanfar '~ MD&CEO 10 10 0 4 1 1

e Mr. Agha Ahmed Shah is a certified director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. In
addition H. E. Yahya Bin Said Bin Abdullah Al-Jabri, Chairman and Mr. Humayun Murad,
Director meets the criteria of exemption under clause (xi) of CCG and is accordingly exempted
from directors training program.

Merger of Management Cdmpany

The Board of Directors of Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited (POAMCL), the
Management Company of the fund, has approved merger of POAMCL with and into KASB Funds
Limited (KFL). The shareholders of Management Company vide a special resolution approved the said

0\
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merger in their extra ordinary general meeting. Competition Commission of Pakistan vide their letter
dated 30 May 2014 has also given a ‘No Objection Certificate’ for the said merger. Funds’ Trustees have
also consented for the change of the management company and NOC from SECP has also been received.

Subsequent to the above processes and after fulfilling all the legal requirements, including those
stipulated by SECP in its above referred NOC, a joint application has been submitted to the SECP for
their final approval and the merger would take effect, from the date as advised by the SECP and subject to
their approval.

Re-appointment of Auditors
The present auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, retired and being eligible,
offered themselves for 're-appointment. The Audit Committee of the Management Company

recommended and the Board of Directors approved their re-appointment as auditors for the year ending
June 30, 2015. '

Mutual Fund Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has assigned Mutual fund ranking 2-Star (short-term) and
3-Star (long-term) to the Fund. Further, Quality Rating of the Management Company is ‘AM3-’; by the
Credit Rating Agency JCR-VIS which is defined as stable management quality.

Acknowledgemenf

We thank all our investors who have placed their confidence in us. We also offer our sincere gratitude to
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Trustee — MCB Financial Services Limited and
the management of the Karachi Stock Exchange. We also wish to place on record our appreciation for the
personnel of the Management Company.

September 30,2014 . . : (Ij:r{and on bemhlf of the Bo:

Karachi — Pakistan. i1 Hina Ghazanfar
: ' MD & CEO
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PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited, the Managenient Company of Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation
Fund (the Fund) is pleased to present the Fund Manager’s Report of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2014.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

The primary investment objective is to provide investor(s) with competetive current income and long-term capital
growth primarily by investing in a diversified portfolio of Shariah compliant investment instruments, including

Shariah compliant securities available for investments outside Pakistan, subject to applicable laws.

Terms and Structure

Type of Scheme Open — End Fund Asset Allocation
Nature of Scheme Shariah Compliant Asset _
. Personal Industrial
Allocation Goods Engineering
Inception Date Oct 30™, 2008 Pharma &Chemicalk 74% . 16%

Face Value
Fund Size

NAV (Jun 30th, 2014)

Benchmark

Fund Ranking

PKR 50 per Unit

PKR 106.844 Million

PKR 53.28

50% 6 month average deposit
rate of 4 islamic banks plus
50% KMI-30

3-Star (PACRA))

Biotech 2.40%
2.63%

. - ¥
AMC Rating AM3- ( JCR - VIS) inchuding
Listing Karachi Stock Exchange receables

Limited

Cash
71.04%

Trustee MCB Financial Services Ltd.

Auditor KPMG TaseerHadi& Co. Unit Holding Pattern

Legal Advisor Mohsin Tayebaly& Co. Units # of Unit Holders
Registrar JWAFFS Registrar Services Pvt Ltd. 0 - 1,600 22
Management Fee 2.50% p.a. 1,001 - 50,000 0
Investment Ms, HinaGhazanfar, CEO 50,0601 — 500,000 O
Committee Mr. Imran Rahim Khan, 500.001 — 1,000,000 0

Fixed Income Fund Manager

Mr.Meraj Uddin Mazhar,
Equity Fund Manager

1000.001 - Above

]
i

Fund Returns POIAAF Benchmark POIAAF Performance

Year-to-Date (YTD) 17.32% 18.219% Yield since inception 171 319
Return (FY'14) 17.31204,

Asset Allocation (% of Assets) 2014 2013 Risk free rate (120 T-Bill) )8 1%

Cash 71.04%  39.74% Sharpe Ratio 138%

Stock/Equities 15.45%  35.63% Distributions FY14 (PKR) 9.07

Sukuks 9.60% 3.49%

Gther including receivables 3.91% 19.15%

Leverage 0.60% 0.00%
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Name of below Type of Value of Provision Value of % of % of Gross
investment grade  investment investment held if any investment Net assets
securities before provision after provision  assets

¢

—-—n-en-—- (Rupees in '000) ----—-—-~---—-~

Maple Leaf Below . 12,371 - 12,371 11.58 38.33
Cement Factory Investment
Limited Grade

12,371 - 12,371

10.00%
8.00%

POIAAF vs Benchmark

6.00% ;
fj
— " N e A
7 % ;M - e RELUIN
i, s'ff T T NS ‘ ! ' e = Benchmark

4.00% -3

2.00%

0.00%

~2.00%

-4.00%

-6.00% -

Fund Review:

POIAAF posted a return of 17.32% during FY 14, lower by méager -0.89% against its benchmark of 18.21%. The fund
maintained its higher concentration towards Construction sector to get the greater benefit of the development
regarding dams.

/b(\/ﬂ

August 29, 2014 Mr. Meraj Uddin Mazhar
Karachi Fund Manager




MUFTI MUHAMMAD NAJEEB KHAN Shar’iah Advisor/Consultant

Report of the Shar’iah Advisor - Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (POIAAF)

Karachi
August 06, 2014

Alhamdulillah, the penod from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 was the sixth year of operations of Pak
Oman Islamic Asset AIIocatlon Fund (POIAAF). This report is being issued in accordance with clause
3.A.4 of the Trust Deed of the Fund. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shar’iah
Compliance of Fund’s act1v1ty

In the capacity of Shar’iah advisor, we have prescribed six criteria for Shar’iah compliance of equity
investments which relate to (i) Nature of business, (ii) Interest bearing debt to total assets, (iii) Investment
in non-Shar’iah compliant avenues to total assets, (iv) Non Compliant Income to Gross Revenue (v)
Iliquid assets to total assets and (vi) Net liquid assets per share vs. share price.

It is responsibility of the management company of the fund to establish and maintain a system of internal
controls to ensure Shar’iah compliance with the Shar’iah policies & guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the management company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the management company to comply with the prescribed criteria.

i. I have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of POIAAF in light of Shar’iah
requirements. I have checked the investments of POIAAF as on June 30, 2014 and their
evaluation according to the screening criteria established by us. (Semi Annual accounts of the
investee companies have been used)

ii.  Inlight of above, I hereby certify that all the provisions of the Scheme and investments in equities
made on account of POIAAF by POAMCL are Shar’iah compliant and are in accordance with the
Shar’iah policies & guidelines.

iii. - On the bas1s of mformatlon provided by the management, all operations of the POIAAF for the
year ended June 30 2014 have been in compliance with the Shar iah principles.

iv.  There are investments made by POIAAF where Investee companies have eamned a part of their
income from non-compliant sources (e.g. interest income). In such cases, the management
company has been directed to set aside as charity such proportion of the Income from Investee
companies in order to purify the earning of the Fund.

May Allah bless us w1th best Tawfeeq to accomplish His Cherished tasks, make us successful in this
world and in the Hereafter, and forgive our mistakes.




CB MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

FINANCIAL SERVICES

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee Pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund, an open end scheme established under a Trust Deed
dated May 27, 200% executed between Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited, as the
Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, as the Trustee.

MCB Financial Services Limited was appointed as a new trustee in place of CDC under third
supplemental Trust Deed dated 15 May 2012, Accordingly the Trust Deed was approved by
SECP on 17 January 2012 under the Rules. However, the assets of the Fund were transferred on
June 13, 2012,

1. Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited, the Management Company of Pak
Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund has, in all material respects. managed Pak Oman
Islamic Asset Allocation Fund during the year ended 30" June 2014 in accordance with
the provisions of the following:

(1) the lumitations imposed on the Asset Management Company and the Trustee
under the trust deed and other applicable laws;

(it) the valuation or pricing is carried out in accordance with the deed and any
regulatory requirement;

(ii1) the creation and cancellation of units are carried out in accordance with the
deed:

(iv) and any regulatory requirement

For the purpese of information, the attention of unit holder is drawn towards auditor’s report
arid note 1.6 to the accompanying financial statemients which explain the current status of the
Management Company’s license to provide asset management services and the scheme of
arrangement of amalgamation.

3 [)/L_,—/"'

Khawaja Anwar Hussain
Chief Executive Officer
Karachi: 30" September 2014 MCB Financial Services Limited

3rd Floor, Adamjee House, 1. I. Chundripar Road, Kurachi - 74000
Dircet Nos. 021-32430485, 32415454, 32415204, 32428731 P'.BX No. 021-32419770, Fux Mo, 021-32416371
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE2014

This statement is being présented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (‘the Code’)
contained in Regulation No. 35 of listing regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange where Pak
Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (‘the Fund’) is listed. The purpose of the code is to establish
a framework of g‘ood governance, whereby a listed entity is managed in compliance with the best

practices of corporate governance.

Pak Oman Asset Manégelnent Company Limited (‘the Management Company’) an unlisted public
company which manages the affairs of the Fund has applied the principles contained in the Code in

the following manner:

1. The Management Company encourages representation of independent non executive directors and

directors representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes :

Category Names
Independent directors Mr. Humayun Murad |

: Mr. Saif Said Salim Al Yazidi
Executive Directors Ms. Hina Ghazanfar (MD & CEQ)

Non — Executive Directors | H.E Yahya Bin Said Abdullah Al-Jabri
, ‘ Mr. Agha Ahmed Shah
: Mr. Sulaiman Hammad Al Harthy
Mr. Ali Said Ali
Mr. Parveiz Usman

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause I (b) of the Code.

2. The directors of the Management Company have confirmed that none of them is serving as a
director on more than seven listed companies, including the Management Company (excluding

- the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).
3. All'the resident directors of the Management Company are registered as taxpayers and none of
them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBTT or, being a

member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. There is no casual vacancy on the Board of the Management Company.

HEAD OFFICE:
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The Manzgement Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct “, and has ensured that appropriate

'
ot
(¢
"3
th
sl

ave been taken place to disseminate it throughout the Management Company along with its

supporting policies and procedures .

The Board of the Management Company has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate
strategy and significant policies of the Fund. A complete record of particulars of significant policies

along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions
including the appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of the
employment of the Chief Executive Officer and other executives and non executive directors have
been taken by the Board. There has been no new appointment of the Chief Executive Officer during

¢

the year.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met atleast once in every quarter. Written notices
of the Board meetings along with agenda and working papers were circulated atleast seven days

before the meetirigs. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Directors are conyersant with the relevant laws applicable to the Management Company, its
policies and procedures and provisions of memorandum and articles of association and are aware of
their duties and responsibilities. However the Code of Corporate Governance ‘issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) requires-all the directors to have a certification under
any directors training programe offered by the institutions that meet the criteria specified by SECP
and that from 30 June 2012 to 30 June 2016, every year, a minimum of one director on the board
shall acquire the said-certification under this prdgrame each year and thereafter all directors shall
obtain it. One of the directors on the Board has obtained certification from the director’s training
progrAar}l offered by a local institution that meet the criteria specified by the Securities Exchange

Commission of Pakistan In addition two directors meet the criteria of exemption under clause (xi) of

Code and are accordingly exempted from directors’ training program.

i

There was no. change of Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary of the Management
Company during the year. However, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) position is still vacant due to
expected merger of the Management Company with another asset management company as more

fully explained in note 1.6 to the financial statements. However, in his absence another person has
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12.

14.

1s.

16.

17.

18.

been assigned the responsrblhty of overseeing the finance function. The remuneration and terms and
condition of employment of Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary were approved by the

Board of the Mar{agement Company.

The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the

Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial stetemeﬁts of the Fund were duly endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
Furthermore, due to tile vacant poéition of CFO, it was endorsed by the finance person responsible

for the overseeing of the finance function.

. The directors, Chief Executive Officer and executives do not hold any interests in the units of the

Fund other than those disclose in the Directors’ Report.

The Management Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements

of the Code with respect to the Fund except as explained in the statement.

The Board of the Management Company has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three
members of whom two of them are non-executive directors and the Chairman of the Audit

Committee is an independent director.
\

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held atleast once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Fund and as required by the code, except for the first quarter ended 30
September2013 in whlch no meeting was held (which was held in the second quarter of the vear).
The terms of reference of the committee have been formed and advised to the committee for

compliance.

The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration committee. It comprises of three members, of whom

two are non- executwe directors and the Chairman of the committee is an independent director.

The Board of the Management Company has set up an internal audit funciion managed by qualified
and experienced professionals who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Management (Com?any and industry best practices. The Head of Internal Audit functionally reports
to the Audit Committee. During the year internal audit activities were not performed for most part of

the year and no reports were issued.
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The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International

Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines ir. this regard.

The ‘closed périod’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions,
which may materially affect the Net Asset Value of Fund’s was determined and intimated to

directors, employees and stock exchange.

Material/price, sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once

through stock exchange.

We confirm that all other applicable material principles enshrined in the code have been complied
with except for the fact that the mechanism for an annual evaluation of the Board's own
performance is not in place. This mechanism was not put in place as the management company is

in the process of merger.

Ms. Hina Ghazanfar
MD & CEO

30 September 2014
Karachi




e

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Telephone + 92 (21) 3568 5847
Chartered Accountants Fax +92 (21) 3568 5095
Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2 Internet  www.kpmg.com.pk

Beaumont Road
Karachi, 75530 Pakistan

Review report to the Unit holders of Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund on
Statement of Compliance with Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) prepared by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (“the Fund”) for the year
ended 30 June 2014 to comply with the listing regulation No. 35 of Karachi Stock Exchange,
where the Fund is hsted

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of
Directors of the Management Company of the Fund. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent
where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Fund’s compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance and report if it does not and to highlight any non compliance with the requirements
of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Fund personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Fund to comply with the Code. :

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Fund's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendatibn of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval of related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on
terms equivalent to those that prevailed in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are
not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate
pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to
the extent of approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our revieys['; nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Fund’s compliance, in all material

respects, with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance for the year
ended 30 June 2014

Further we highhght below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Code as
reflected in the paragraph references where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

a) Paragraph 10 relatmg to the fact that the position of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is still
vacant.

b) Paragraph 12'feiating to the endorsement of the financial statements of the Fund for the year
ended 30 June 2014, which mentions that the financial statements for the year than ended
have been, due to the vacant position of CFO have been endorsed by the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) only

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan

and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG international Cooperative
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c) Paragraph 16 which mentions that meeting of the Audit Committee was not held in the first
quarter of the financial year ended 30 June 2014. However as per the Code of Corporate
Governance, such a meeting should be held in each quarter.

d) Paragraph 18 whlch mentions that internal audit reports for the current year were not issued
during the year.! g

e) Paragraph 23 relﬁting to a mechanism for the annual evaluation of the Board’s performance
as per the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance which have not been put in
place by the Management Company.

"CQ“U\M /r)\ {, Q—C

Date: 30 September 2014 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
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" Independent Auditors’ Report to the Unit Holders

Report on the Fi z'na'ncz'al Statements

We have audlted the accompanying financial statements of Pak Oman Islamic Asset
Allocation Fund (¢ ﬂle Fund”) which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at 30
June 2014 and the related income statement, statement of comprehensive income, distribution
statement, statement of movement in Unit Holders’ fund, cash flow statement for the year

ended 30 June 2014 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Management Company’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Management Company of the Fund is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those
standards requlre that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
mxsstatement

An audit involves pétforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in'the ﬁnancml statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the’ ‘assessiient of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the Fund’s preparation and fair presentatlon of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an oplmon on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes

“evaluating the e[pproprlateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates’ made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements,”

ik A
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion .

In our opinion, the ﬁnanc1a1 statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s
affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of its financial performance, cash flows and transactions for the
year then ended in acéordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

i KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., & Partnership firm registered in Paklstan
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We draw attention to note 1.6 to the accompanying financial statements which explains the
current status of the Management Company’s license to provide asset management services and
details of the fact that the Board of Directors have concluded a scheme of arrangement for
amalgamation w1th another assets management company. The merger is subject to the approval

of Securltles and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Our opinion is not qualified in this
respect.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant

provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation Rules, 2003)
and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

_)K\NUW\ '/L\_»\( /‘n&\ (Z o

Date: 30 September 2014 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
A Chartered Accountants
' : Amyn Pirani

Karachi
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Independent Assurance Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
to the Unit holders

We were engaged by the Board of Directors of Pak Oman Asset Management Company
Limited, Management Company of Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund), to
report on Fund’s Compliance with the Shariah principles as set out in the annexed statement
prepared by the management company for the year ended 30 June 2014 in the form of an
independent reasonable assurance conclusion about whether the aniexed statement presents
fairly, in all material respects, the status of the Fund’s compliance with Shariah principles
specified in the Trust Deed and in the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor as required
under clause 3.A.4 of the Trust Deed of the Fund.

Management Company’s responsibility

The management company of the fund is responsible for preparing the annexed statement that
is free from material misstatement in accordance with the Shariah principles specified in the
Trust Deed and in the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the operations of the
Fund in accordance with the Shariah principles and to ensure that Fund’s investments are
made in compliance with Shariah principles.

Responsibility of independent assurance providers

Our responsibility is to examine the annexed statement prepared by the Management
Company and to report thereon in the form of an independent reasonable assurance
conclusion based on the evidence obtained. We conducted our engagement in accordance
with International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’ issued by
the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we
comply with ethical requirements, including independence requirements, and plan and
perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annexed statement
fairly presents the status of the Fund’s compliance with the Shariah principles specified in the
Trust Deed and in the guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor.

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material non-compliance with Shariah principles whether due to fraud or error. In making

those risk assessments, we have considered internal control relevant to the operations of the

Fund in accordance with the Shariah principles in order to design assurance procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing a conclusion as to
the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

The procedures performed included:

1. Checking compliance of specific guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor relating to
charity and for making investments of the Fund.

CEPRG inlurmationsl™, & Swis
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2. Check that the Shariah Advisor has certified that investments made by the Fund during
the period ended 30 June 2014 are in compliance with the Shariah principles and where
required purification of income from non-compliant sources has been made in
consultation with the Shariah Advisor

Conclusion

Our conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in this
report. We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our conclusion.

In our opinion, the annexed statement, in all material respects, presents fairly the status of the
Fund's compliance with the Shariah principles specified in the Trust Deed and in the
guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor for the year ended 30 June 2014,

Other information

Shariah Advisor in their report dated 06 August 2014 on the review of the documents and the
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2014 have recommended to the
Management Company that investments made by the Fund where investee companics have carned a
part of their income from non-compliant sources (e.g. interest income) to be set aside as charity in
order to purify the earning of the Fund.

l{,—m,‘ G oAl

Date: 1 October 2014 KPMG Tasecer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi




Pak Oman Islafnic Asset Allocation Fund
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2014
' 30 June 30 June
o 2014 2013
Note (Rupees in '000)

Assets
Bank balances 6 86,101 60,236
Investments i 7 32,290 62,278
Dividend and profit receivables 8 2,472 2,105
Deposits and other receivables 9 8,050 26,889
Total assets f 128,913 151,508
Liabilities
Remuneration payable to the Management Company 10 181 335
Remuneration payable to the Trustee 11 10 26
Annual fee payable to the Sj{ecurities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan 12 123 134
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 13 21,755 15,040
Total liabilities | - ) 22,069 15,535
Net assets 106,844 135,973
Unit holders' fund (as per the statement attached) 106,844 135,973

(Number of units)
Number of units in issue | 16 2,005,402 2,148.480
(Rupees)

Net assets value per unit (face value per unit Rs. 50/-) . 53.28 63.29

N F
[T
LAl

i u‘u
The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

(N@ﬂ/wﬁ |
+ { Chief Execuiii (}cﬁ&x\\ | ‘Director
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Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Income Statement :
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Income o

Gain on disposal of marketable securities - net (at fair value
through profit and loss - upéﬁ intital recognition and held
for trading) R

Profit on bank deposit accounts

Profit on sukuk certificates (aJ
loss - upon initial recognition)

Dividend income (at fair valu'eigthrough profit and loss
- held for trading) ‘

air value through profit and

Unrealised diminution on remeasurement of investment at
fair value through profit or loss - upon initial recognition
and held for trading -net "
Reversal of provision ¥ (provision on investment) (at fair value
through profit amd loss - upbh initial recognition)

Total income

Expenses

Remuneration to the Management Company

Remuneration to the Trustee

Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Auditors' remuneration -

Fees and subscription

Amortisation of deferred formation cost

Bank, settlement, brokerage and other charges

e

Element of (loss) and capital (losses) included in prices of
units sold less those in units redeemed - net

Provision for Workers' ‘Welfa!rjé"Fund
Net income for the year before taxation
HGE

Taxation Ce
Net income for the year after taxation

Note

7.1 &7.2

14

15

14.1

18

The annexed notes from .l to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

feonA

""" For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)
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30 June
2014

30 June
2013

(Rupees in '000)

13,378 30,835
5,625 3,720
4,596 4,344
1,293 2,208

24,892 41,107

(4,428) (1.974)

10,775 (1.794)
6,347 (3.768)

31,239 37,339
3,054 4,223

155 168
123 134
558 491
151 140
- 290
5,651 5,652
9,692 11,098
21,547 26.241
(2,644) (2.756)
(376) (459)
18,527 23,026
18,527 23,026




Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014

30 June 30 June
2014 2013
(Rupees in '000)

Net income for the year 18,527 23,026
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive'incon:le for the year 18,527 23,026

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
~For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

MM/

| Chief Exec ve Officer

4 Director

R




Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Distribution Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Realised income at the beginning of the year
Unrealised loss at the begﬂih‘ning of the year
Total undistributed mcéme at the beginning of the year - net

Final distribution for the year ended 30 June 2013 at the rate
of Rs 10.18 (2013: 5.84) per unit approved on
04 July 2013 (2013: 04 July 2012)
- Cash distribution
- Issue of bonus units 28,460 (2013: 2,508)
R
Interim distribution- for theuyear ended 30 June 2014 at the rate
of Rs. 9.0720 per unit approved on 27 June 2014
- Cash distribution
- Issue of bonus units 788 (2013: nil)

Net income for the year

Undistributed income artwend of the year:
RELE
Details of undistributed i income at year end is as follow:
. v
Reahsed income at the endtof the year
Unrealised loss at the end of the year
Total undistributed income at the end of the year - net

vt

The annexed notes fr’om 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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30 June
2014

30 June
2013

(Rupees in '000)

30,255 17.200
(1,974) (133)
28,281 17,067
(20,360) (11,680)
(1,512) (132)
(21,872) (11,812)
(18,144) -
(42) -
(18,186) -
18,527 23,026
6,750 28,281
11,178 30,255
(4,428) (1,974)
6,750 28,281

' For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited

(Management Company)

[

hlef Execu LO;;\—‘D

INrector
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Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit holders' Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Net assets at beginning offﬁe year

Cash received on issue of 1,628,674 (2013: 4,278,208) units
Cash paid on redemption of 1,801,000 (2013: 4,154,814) units

vk
H

Element of loss and capital losses included in prices of units
sold less those in units redeemed - net

Final distribution for the year ended 30 June 2013 at the rate
of Rs 10.18 (2013: 5.84) per unit approved on
04 July 2013 (2013:.04 July 2012)
- Cash distribution = .5
- Issue of bonus units:28,460 (2013: 2,508)

Interim distribution for the year ended 30 June 2014 at the rate
of Rs. 9.0720 per unit approved on 27 June 2014

- Cash distribution

- Issue of bonus units 788

Issue of bonus unitsi28,460:(2013: 2,508) as final distribution
Issue of bonus units 788 (2013: nil) as interim distribution for 2014

Net income for the year - | i
P FEK

Net assets at end of the year

Ex distribution net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year
- <. g ;..‘.4515;"

Net asset value per Gnit at the end of the year

R

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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. For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited
{(Management Company)

b

30 June
2014

30 June

2013

(Rupees in '000)

135,973 118,131
91,010 247422
(102,806) (243,682)
(11,796) 3,740
2,644 2,756
(20,360) (11,680)
(1,512) (132)
(21,872) (11,812)

(18,144) -
(42) -
(18,186) -
1,512 132
42 ;
1,554 132
18,527 23,026
106,844 135,973
53.11 52.57
53.28 63.29




Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014

30 June 30 June
2014 - 2013

G (Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year ( 18,527 23,026

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Profit on bank deposit accounts (5,625) (3,720)
Profit on sukuk certificates (mvcstments) (4,596) (4,344)
Dividend income i (1,293) (2,208)
Unrealised diminution on lemeasurement of investment at fair value
through profit or loss - upon initial recognition - net 4,428 1.974
(Reversal of provision) / provision against investment ' (10,775) 1,794
Amortisation of deferred formation cost : - 290
Element of loss and capital losses included in sold less those in units
redeemed - net . 2,644 2,756
R 3,310 19,568
Decrease / (increase) in assets :
Investments ‘ . 36,334 25,004
Deposits and other recexvables 18,839 {19.874)
55,173 5,130
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Remuneration payable to the Management Company (154) 44
Remuneration payable to the Trustee (16) (5)
Annual fee payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan an 26
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (11,429) 6.876
: (11,610) 6,941
Profit received on bank dcpos‘fi‘tiaccounts ‘ o 5,621 3440
Profit received (net) on sukuk certificates 4,464 5.831
Dividend received . 1,062 2303
Net cash inflow from operat‘lﬂir‘fx“g activities 58,020 43213
CASH FLOWS F ROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount received on 1ssue of umts 91,011 247,422
Amount paid on redemptlon of Units (102,806) (243,682)
Dividend paid : (20,360) (11,680)
Net cash (outflow) in financing activities (32.156) (7,940)
Net increase in cash and ‘c:ié‘htequivalents during the year 25.865 35,273
Cash and cash equivalents aé’Beginning of the year 60,236 24,963
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $6.101 60.236

S

The annexed notes from ",1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

) / For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited

(I\/Ianagement Company)
/—M :ﬁ/@/\
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Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Pak Oman Islamic A:sset Allocation Fund (the Fund) was established as an open-end scheme under a
trust deed (the Trust, Deed) executed between Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited as the
Management Company, a company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance 1984, and MCB
Financial Services as a trustee under the third supplemental Trust Deed dated 15 May 2012. The Fund
is registered as a nonf ed entity under NBFC Regulations, 2008.

The registered office of the Management Company is situated at Horizon Vista, Mezzanine Floor - 2,

Plot No. Commercial - 10 Scheme - 5, Block 4, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is a Shariah compliant open-end mutual Fund and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange. Its
units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can be
redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of unit holder. Title to the assets of Fund is
held in the name of MCB Financial Services Limited as the Trustee of the Fund.

The Fund is categorised as an Islamic Asset Allocation Fund in accordance with the requirements of
the SECP's circular No. 7 dated 6 March 2009 and accordingly its investments comprise of shariah
compliant income securltxes so as to ensure a riba-free return on investments. All investments of the
Fund are as per the gutdelmes of the shariah principles provided by the Shariah Advisor of the Fund and
comprise the lnvestmze?nts permissible as 'Authorised Investments' under the Trust Deed.

o
In accordance with the criteria specified by the rating agency, the ranking of the Fund is 3 star ranking
as assigned by PACRA JCR-VIS has assigned an 'AM3 rating to the Management Company.

The Management Cc;mpany s license to provide asset management and investment advisory services
has expired and-an apphca‘non was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) for 1ts renewa] SECP had advised that the renewal application shall be considered only when
the Management Company meets the minimum equity requirement (MER) of Rs. 230 million (net of

losses). In view of thJS fact, the management company, with the approval of its Board of Directors
have concluded a scheme of arrangement for amalgamation with KASB Funds Limited (KFL), with
KFL being the surv1ymg entity. The scheme of amalgamation was also approved by the majority
shareholders of the management company vide a special resolution in their extra ordinary general
meeting held on 06 August 2014. Competition Commission of Pakistan has also issued a no objection
certificate for the proposed merger vide their approval letter dated 30 May 2014. Trustees of the Fund
have also gtven thexr consent for the proposed merger. SECP, vide its letter dated 17 July 2014, has
issued a no ObJeCtIOI‘l cemﬁcate for the proposed merger, subject to certain conditions mentioned
therein. Management (,ompany is of the view that these conditions have been met and accordingly a
joint application has been filed with SECP for the merger. The proposed merger would be subject to
the approval of SECP and would be effective from the date and subject to the conditions as may be
notified by them. Management Company expects that approval for the proposed merger would be
granted by SECP, subsequent to which, MER requirement and renewal of license would then stand
resolved. Further, the Management Company is of the view that under the NBFC regulations it can
carry on its business as the renewal application has been filed with the SECP and the latter has not -
declined the renewal. 4
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2.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakiétan Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified
under the Compames Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 Non Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and
Non-Banking Fmance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC rules and regulations).
In case, the requxrements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the
requirements of the Non Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003, Non
ompanies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 shall prevail.

Bankmg F mancé‘
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The transactions Li‘ndertaken by the Fund in accordance with the process prescribed under the Shariah
Guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor are accounted for on substance rather than the form
prescribed by the Shariah Advisor (refer note 1.4 above). This practice is being followed to comply with
the requirements of approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Basis of measurement

R
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that
investments are stated at fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

These finarcial §qatements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Fund. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee in thousand.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The prepavratiori"&f financial statements in conformity with approved-accounting standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, 1equ1{res management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
appllcatxon of polxc;es and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and assocxated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making

the Judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual ‘g_le(sults may differ from these estimates.

The est11nates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recogmsed in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the perlod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments, made by management in the application of approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material Judgment in the next year are as follows:

Classification and valuation of investments (including impairment)
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Provision for taxation

For details please refer notes 5.7 and 17 to these financial statements.
Provision for workers' welfare fund liability

For details please refer note 13.1 to these financial statements.

‘

Other assets

For detail please r fer note 5.15 to these financial statements.
in assessing the realisability of other assets balances.

4. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be
effective for, accqun;ging periods beginning on or after 01 July 2014:

- IFRIC21- Lev;es an Interpretation on the accounting for levies imposed by governments”

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). [FRIC 21 is an interpretation
of 1AS 37 Proyvisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. IAS 37 sets out criteria for the
recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for the entity to have a present obligation
as aresult of a past event (known as an obligating event). The Interpretation clarifies that the

. obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The interpretation is not likely to have an impact on
Fund’s financial statements.

- wb
- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32) — (effective for
annual perlods begmmng on or after 1 January 2014). The amendments address inconsistencies in
‘current pract:ce when applying the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
The amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off; and
that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

- Amendment to IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Fmancxal Assets (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). These
Narrow-scope, amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets address the disclosure of information
about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

- Amendmentsfe IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™ Continuing hedge
_ accounting aﬁér derivative novation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014). The amendments add a limited exception to IAS 39, to provide relief from discontinuing an
exxstmg hedgmg relationship when a novation that was not contemplated in the original hedging
documentation meets specific criteria. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s

@ financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” Employee contributions - a practical approach
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014). The practical expedient addresses
an issue that arose when amendments were made in 2011 to the previous pension accounting
requirements. The amendments introduce a relief that will reduce the complexity and burden of
accounting for certain contributions from employees or third parties. The amendments are relevant
only to defined benefit plans that involve contributions from employees or third parties meeting
certain criteria. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

Amendment:sﬁjio IAS 38 Intangible Assets'and IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for
annual perio’jcl E. beginning on or after 1 January 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use of
revenue-baséd'amortization for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based methods of
deprecratloné annot be used for property, plant and equipment, The rebuttable presumption that the
de-based amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome
only when revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible assct arce “highly
correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue. The amendments

are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ — (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 201 5) replaces the part of IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.
IFRS lO intr oduces a new approach to determining which investees should be consolidated. The
single model to ‘be applied in the control analysis requires that an investor controls an investee
when the mvestor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. [FRS 10
has made consequentlal changes to IAS 27 which is now called ‘Separate Financial Statements’
and wrll deal w1th only separate financial statements.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2015)
replaces IAS 3l ‘Interests in Joint Ventures’. Firstly, it carves out, from IAS 31 jointly controlled
entities, those cases in which although there is a separate vehicle, that separation is ineffective in
certain ways. These arrangemerts are treated srmrlarly to jointly controlled assets/operations under

4 IAS 31 and are now called joint operatlons Secondly, the remamder of 1AS 31 Jomtly controlled

propomonate consolrdatlon they must now always use the equity method. IFRS 11 has also made
consequential ehanges in JAS 28 which has now been named ‘Investment in Associates and Joint
Ventures’. The amendments requiring business combination accounting to be applied to

acquisitions of interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business are effective for annual
periods begmmng on or after | January 2016.

IFRS 12 Drscloaure of Interest in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 201 5) combines the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, Jomt arrangements (i.e. joint operations or join t ventures), associates and/or
unconsolldated structured entities, into one place.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January
2015) defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements. IFRS 13 explains how to measure fair value when it is
required by other IFRSs. It does not introduce new fair value measur ements, nor does it eliminate
the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain standards.

RN
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Amendment to IAS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statement’ (effective for annual periods beginning on

| or after 1" January 2016). The amendments to IAS 27 will allow entities to use the equity method to

account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial
statements.

Agriculture: Bearer Plants [Amendment to IAS 16 and IAS 41] (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016). Bearer plants are now in the scope of IAS 16 Property,
Plant and Ecjui'pment for measurement and disclosure purposes. Therefore, a company can elect to -
measure beare'r' 'plants at cost. However, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to be

measured at farr value less costs to sell under IAS 41 Agriculture. A bearer plant is a plant that: is

used in: the supply of agricultural produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one period;
and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce. Before maturity, bearer plants are
accounted fort the same way as self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment during
construction. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cycles (most amendments will apply »
prospectively for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2014). The new cycle of improvements
contain amendments to the following standards: :

- IFRS 2 Share—based Payment’. [FRS 2 has been amended to clarify the definition of ‘vesting

condmon by separately defining performance condition’ and ‘service condition’. The
amendment also clarifies both: how to distinguish between a market condition and a non-market
performance condition and the basis on which a performance condition can be differentiated
from a vest;ing condition.

- IFRS 3 ‘Busmess Combinations’. These amendments clarify the classification and measurement
of contmgent consideration in a business combination. Further IFRS 3 has also been amended to
clanfy that the standard does not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangements including joint operations in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
themselves :

- IFRS 8 Operatmg Segments’ has been amended to explicitly require the disclosure of judgments
made by management in applying the aggregation criteria. In addition this amendment clarifies
that a reconcrhatron of the total of the reportable segment’s assets to the entity assets is required
only if thls mformatlon is regularly provided to the entity’s chief operating decision maker. This
change ahgns the disclosure requirements with those for segment liabilities.

- Amendments to IAS 16’ Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’. The

amendments clarify the requirements of the revaluation model in IAS 16 and IAS 38, recognizing
that the restatement of accumulated depreciation (amortization) is not always proportionate to
the change m the gross carrying amount of the asset.

- IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosure’. The definition of related party is extended to include a
management entity that provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity,
either dlrectly or through a group entity.

- IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’. IAS 40 has been amended to clarify that an entity should assess
whether an acqulred property is an investment property under IAS 40 and perform a separate
assessment under IFRS 3 to determine whether the acquisition of the investment property

constitutes a business combination.
v 3 i
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5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

The above improvements are not likely to have an impact on the financial statements of the F und.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These have been consistently applied to all periods presented.

I_nvestment

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including
the transaction cost associated with the investment, except in case of held for trading, and at fair value
through profit and loss - upon initial recognition investments, in which case the transaction costs are
charged off to the income statement.

The Fund classifies its investments in the following categories:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories, namely; financial instruments held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition:

(a) Investments which are acquired principally for the purposes of generating profit from short term
fluctuation in price or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of short term
profit taking are classified as held for trading.

(b) Investments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition include those
- - group of financial assets which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the documented risk management / investment strategy.

After initial recbgﬁition, the investments in listed equity instruments are remeasured at fair value
determined with ,:;qference to Stock Exchange quoted market prices at the close of period end.

Gains or losses on investments on remeasurement of these investments are recognised in the income
statement.

; e
Valuation of debt securities

The govei‘nvmen‘t‘b,égcurities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank market are valued
at the average rates quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system which are based on the
remaining tenor of the securities.

The fair value of other debt securities is based on the value determined and announced by Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the criteria laid down in circular No. 1 of 2009
dated 6 January 2009 and circular No. 33 of 2012 dated 24 October 2012 issued by the SECP.

Provision for noéQberforming debt securities is made on the basis as prescribed under the above
mentioned circulars issued by the SECP. The Management Company may also make provision against
non-performing debt securities over and above the minimum provision requirements prescribed in the
aforesaid circular, in accordance with the provisioning policy approved by its board of directors.

feemy
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5.2

5.3

5.4

55

5.6

5.7

¢ Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on
which commitment to purchase / sale is made by the Fund. Regular way purchases or sales of
investment require delivery of securities within two days after transaction date as required by Stock
Exchange regulations. ‘

Issue and redemptién of units

Units issued are recé“rded at the offer price prevalent on the day on which applications for purchase of
units are issued (however units are issued on realisation of cheques). The offer price represents the net
asset value of units f he end of the day plus the allowable sales load, provision of duties and charges
and provision for tr i isaction costs, if applicable. The sales load, if any, is payable to the distributors and

the management company as processing fee.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price prevailing at the end of the day in which the units
are redeemed. The redemption price represents the net assets value per unit less any duties, taxes,
charges on redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable.

Element of income / loss and capital gains / losses in prices of units sold
less those in‘units,r}edecmed

To prevent the diluti5il of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out on redemption, as
dividend, an equalisation account called “element of income and capital gains included in prices of units
sold less those in units redeemed” is created.

Element of income is recognised in the income statement for the year to the extent that it is
represented by income earned during the year.

1§

Payables and-accruals

Payables and accruals are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future Tor the serwces received whether billed or not to the Fund.

: ;‘!;';
Provisions

i ol ,
Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

_past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly
reviewed at each balance sheet date and ad justed to reflect the current best estimate.

i i i
Net asset value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities of the Fund is
calculated by dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

ot

Taxation

The Fund is exempt from taxation under clause 99 of the Part I of the 2nd Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its income, excluding realised and
nnrealiced canital oaine for the vear i< dictributed amoneosct the 1nit haldere Since the Raard af Nirantare
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5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

of the management company has declared a dividend (refer note 22), accrual of tax habxhty has not
been made.

Formation cost
Preliminary expenses and floatation cost represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of
the operations ofthe{'Fund as permitted in the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entitics

Regulations 2008. These cost are being amortised at the rate of 20% on a straight line basis.

Unit holder's fund

Unit holder's fund representing the units issued by the Fund, is carried at the redemption amount
representing the investor's right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets.

. . . P
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the Fund looses control
of the contractual rxg}lts that comprises that financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
they are extmgunshed that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expxred. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to
income currently.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value.
The particular recognition method adopted for measurement of financial liabilities investments
subsequent to initial recognition is disclosed in the individual policy statement associated with each item.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets
and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and the Fund
intends either to settle on a net basis, or realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

izfi £

Impairment :

Impairment IOS“ in restpect of financial assets (other than debt securities) is recognised based on
management’s dssessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
may have an xmpact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments.

Provision for nqn-pefforming debt securities and other exposures is made in accordance with the
criteria specified in Circular No. 33 dated October 24, 2012 issued by SECP and based on
management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company pursuant to the requirements ¢ f the SECP's above referred circular.

Investments in equity securities are considered to be impaired when there is a significant or prolonged

decline in the fair value of individual instruments below its ¢ osts. The determination of what is
significant or prolongéa requires judgement.

Individually signiﬁcaﬁt financial assets are tested for impairinent on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics, '
Lo Do~




Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
5.12 Dividend distributions and appropriations

Dividend (includi_ﬁfg the bonus units) declared subsequent to the balance sheet date are recorded in the
period in which they are approved.

5.13 Revenue recognition

- Gains/ (lossééj arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date at
which the trar action takes place.

- Unrealisc;d gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of investments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

- Dividend income is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

- Income on debtsecurities and bank balances are recognised in the income statement at rate of
return implicit in the instrument balance on a time proportionate basis.

5.14 Cash and cash eq‘ﬁivalents

Cash and cash equ:izy_alents for cash flow purposes comprise of bank balances.

5.15 Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

; 2014 2013
6. BANK BALANC@§ (Rupees in '000)
local currenyc‘y :
In profit and loss sharing accounts ' 6.1 86,101 60,236

6.1  These represents profit and loss account maintained with banks carrying mark-up rates ranging from
4.99% to 8.5% (2013: 5% to 10.8%) per annum.

7. INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss
- upon initial recognition
Sukuk certificates - 7.1 12,371 8,320

- held for trading
@ Shares of listed companies 7.2 19,919 53,958

et - 32,290 62,278
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Sukuk Certificates
At fair value through profit or loss - upon initial recognition
Name of the investec company Maturitics Markuprate  Holdingas  Purchases  Disposed/  Holdiogas  Carryingvalue  Market valuc Unreatised  Credit rating  Marke value / Marketvalue/  Face valuc % In
#0lJuly  dudngthe  matured  at30June (before revaluation  value as of the appreciation /| carrying value (@) cacrying vatoe (a)  relutlon to the slse
2013 year during the year 2014 a5 of the year year ended 30 {dimiaution) as % of total as % of net ansets of the lssuc
. ended 30 June June 2014 ‘ investments
2014) (revised carrying
value) (a)
s Nuniber of cerfificates - (Rupees in 000y :
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited ¢7.7.1) 3 December 2018 3months KIBOR + . 4,000 - - 4,000 15,958 - nan (3.587°  BBB 3831 1158 02s "
base rate of 1%
Kohat Cement Company Limiied (7. / 2 20 Scptember 2016 3 months KIBOR + 2,000 B 2000 - - - 0.00
: base ratc of 1.5% .
T e P e 5 Totgl as at 30 June 2014 15958

Provision held / unrealised loss (note 7.1.4)

Carrying value as 2t 30 June 2014

Total as at 30 Junc 2013 18.719 19.095 376

Provision held (note 7.1.4 (10.775)

Cartying valuc a8 at 30 Junc 2014 3320

Cost of Investments 26,901
All sukak certificates have face value of R, 5.000 each, -
During the year Sukuk certificate of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL) was classified as performing by MUFAP in accordance with the provisions of circular 33 of 2012. Accordingly, provision of Rs.
10.775 million has been reversed during the year. In addition, interest income of Rs. 0.136 million has also been recognised on these certificates.
Sukuk certificates of Kohat Cement Company Limited (KCCL) were restructured on 14 September 2011. As per the new terms, profit for the first 4 quarters (commencing with the quarter ending 20 September 2011 and
ending with the quarter ending 20 June 2012 amounting to Rs. 1.604 million) will go into frozen account and would be paid from the 13th quarter ending 20 September 2014 to the 20th quarter ending 20 June 2016.
Provision against impu:i {320t of investments (note 7.1.1) - sukuk certificates of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 2014 2013

(Rupees in '600)

Opening balance ‘ 10,775 8,981
Provision for impairment . - 1,794
Reversal of provision (2014: sukuk certifiates of Maple Leaf Cement Factory) (10,775) -
Net (credit) / charge to the income statement (10,775) 1,794
Closing balance . - 10,775
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Shares of listed company
At fair value through profit or loss - held for trading
(Ordinary shares have a face value of Rs 10 each unless stated otherwise)
Percentage of investment in
. . relation (o e
Name of the investee Holding as at 01  Purchases during  Bonus/right  Disposed during  Holding as at 30 Carryingvalue  Market value as of Unrealised Market value as  Market value as  Pald up value of

July 2013 the year shares received the year June 2014 (before revaluation  the year ended 30 appreciation / % of total % of act assets  shuces held ax a % of
during the year as of the year ended  June 2014 (revised (diminution) investments total paid up capital
30 June 2014) carrying value) of the investee
{(Number of Share) e . (Rupees in "0 compuny
Banks / DFls - ~ . h
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 300,000 300,000 - 600,000 - - - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited - 92,000 - 92,000 - - - - . .
B.RR Guardian Modaraba A ~ . 615,500 - 615,500 N . . < < - . .
Chemicals
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 30,000 357,500 - 387,500 . R - . . - .
LCI Pakistan Limited 24,400 31,300 - 55,700 . - - - - . .
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Company Limited - 120,000 R 120,000 . . R . - R .
Ghani Gases Limited - 469,000 . 344,000 125,000 3,481 3,094 (387) 9.58 290 -
Crescent Steel and Allied Products - 242,500 - 242,500 - - . - . N
125,000 3,481 3,094 (387)
Coanstruction and Materials
D.G.Khan Cement Company Limited 100,000 993,500 . 1,093,500 . . . - - . -
Maple Leaf Cement Factory * : 450,000 3,756,500 - 3,981,500 225,000 6,895 6,761 (134) 20,94 633 0.04
Lucky Cement Company Limited - 20,000 - 20,000 . - - - - . -
Kohat Cement Limited - 50,000 - 50.000 - - - - - - B
Pioneer Cement Limited - 1,314,500 - 1,251,500 63,000 2,957 2,94¢ an 9.10 2.75 -
Cherat Cement Limited - 436,000 - 436,000 . - . - . -
Lafarge Pakistan Cement - 1,646,000 - 1,646,000 . - . - . R R
Fauji Cement Company Limited . - 2,586,500 - 2,586,500 - - . -
Fecto Cement Limited - 115,000 . 115,000 . - . -
288,000 9.852 9,701 (151)
Electricity
Hub Power Company Limited . 425,000 . 425,000 B . . . . . .
Kohinoor Energy Limited < 487,000 - 487,000 - - - . - . .
Pakgen Power Limited - 785,500 - 785,500 - - - - - - -
Nishat Power Limited - 104,000 - 104,000 - - - - - - -
Fixed Line Telecommunication
Pakistan Telecommunication Limited 225,000 1,560,000 - 1,785,000 N N A - - - -
Food Produces . .
En‘gm Foods Limited 10,500 511,000 - 521,500 - - - - - - -
Gas, Water and Multi Utitities
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited - 25,000 . 25,000 . . . . . . R
Sui Southesn Gas Company Limited - 316,000 - 316.000 . - . . - . -
Oil and Gas
Qi and Gas Development Company Limited 15,000 420,900 . 435900 - - - . . - -
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 15,000 669,600 - 684,600 - - - - - - -
Attock Refinery Limited - 130,000 . 130,000 - B . - - . .
Mari Gas Company Limited - 105,300 - 105,300 - - - - - - -
Pakistan Oilfields Limited - 81,000 - 81,000 - - - - - - -
Pakistan Petroleum Limited - 245,000 - . 245.000 - . . - . . -




Name of the investee Holding as at 01 Purchases during  Bonus / right Disposed during  Holding as at 30 Carrying value Macket value as of Unrealised Market vatue as  Market value ay Paid up value of
July 2013 the year shares received the year June 2014 (before revaluation the year ended 30 appre: % of toral o of et amnety  phures bield as '77 ol
during the year as of the year ended  June 2014 (revised {dimination) fnvestments dotal padd up eapitnl
30 June 2014) carrying value) of the fnyvesiee
——— (Number of Share) ~—~meeereeee Rupees in '000) . conpuny
Personal Goods ' ¢
Tarig Glass Industries  * . 100,000 100,000 - B - - - .
Nishat Mills Limited 125,000 1,000,700 - 1,105,700 20,000 2,300 2,238 (62) 693 209
20,000 2,300 2238 62)
Auvtomobile and Parts . R -
Honda Adles Limited - 94,500 - h 94,500 - - - - - -
Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited - 125,400 125,400 - - - - . - -
~General Industries )
Packages Limited - 18,900 - 18,900 . . . . - . .
Thal Limited - 15,000 - 15,000 . . - - . - -
Tri Pack Fitms Limited - 17,000 . 17,000 - . - - - - -
Forestry
Century Paper & Board Milt - 65,500 - 65,500 - - - - - - -
Health Care Equipment and Services ;
Shifa International Hospitals - 64,400 - 64.400 N N i N N - - -
“Technology and Communication
Netsol Technologies - 23,000 - 23,000 B A N T R . - .
Industeirl Eugincering
Millat Tractors . 3,000 - - 3,000 1,582 1,497 (85) 464 1.40 -
Phacms & Bio Tech )
1B, Health Care - 25,000 - 25,000 - . . . - - -
Highnoon Lab (Pakistan) Limited . - 43,300 - 23,300 20,000 3,545 3,389 (158) 1050 317 -
20,000 3,545 3,389 (156)
Total x5 ut 30 June 2014 20760 19919 (831)
Cost of [nvesiments 20,760
Total as at 30 June 2013 56309 53.958 (2351}
Cost of investments as at 30 Jupe 2014 56,300 .

*This includes shares having macket value of Rx 4 958 nillion pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
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10.

10.1

11.

12.

DIVIDEND AND PROFIT RECEIVABLES 2014 2013
(Rupees in '000)

Dividend receivables | 231 -

Profitreceivable on sukuk certificates 1,736 1,604

Profit receivable on bank balances ' 505 501
2,472 2,105

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposit wigﬁTrustee 100 100

it

Security deposit with National Clearing Company

of Pakistan Limi q 2,500 2,500
Receivable against sale of investments 5,450 24,289
8,050 26,889
REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MANAGEMENT.COMPANY
Remuneration payéb‘:le 10.1 181 335
181 335

Under regulation 6}{”017 the NBFC Regulations 2008, the Asset Management Company is entitled to a
remuneration, during the first five years of the Fund, of an amount not exceeding three percent of the
average annual net assets of the Fund and thereafter of an amount equal to two percent of such assets
of the Fund. The management company, for the current year, has charged its remuneration at the rate
of 3% till 29 October 2013 thereafter it charged remuneration at the rate of 2% (2013: 3%) to comply
with the above regufétion. Szles tax and Federal Excise duty payable on the management's
remuneration has b?g_p disclosed in note 14.2.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE

MCB Financial Services Limited as Trustee is entitled to monthly remuneration at the rate of 0.12%
(2013: 0.12%) for s¢wices rendered to the Fund under the provision of third supplemental Trust Deed
in accordance with the tariff specified therein.

ANNUAL FEE PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION Oi? PAKISTAN

This represents annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in
accordance with Rule 62 of the Non-Banking Finance Conipanies and Notified Entities Regulations,

2008. Currently, the Fund is required to pay annual fee to SECP at the rate of 0.095% of the average
daily net assets of the Fund.

——




13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 2014 ' 2013
(Rupees in '000)

Auditors' remuneration 344 350

Payable against purchase of investments - 12,155
Provision for workers welfare fund ' 13.1 1,918 1,542
Brokerage expense, :payable 712 476
Dividend payable: to unit holders 18,144 -

FED payable.on management remuneration 13.2 22 30
Sales tax payable op management remuneration 13.2 40 58

Others 575 429

21,755 15,040

13.1 The Finance Act, 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971
(WWF Ordinance). As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective Investment
Schemes / mutual funds (CISs) whose income exceeds Rs. 0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought
within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the
rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a
Constitutional Pet;’g_ion has been filed by certain CISs through their trustees in the Honourable High
Court of Sindh (SHC), challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, which is pending adjudication.

During the year 2011, a single bench of the Lahore High Court (LHC) in a constitutional petition
relating to the amendments brought in the WWF Ordinance, 1971 through the Finance Act, 2006, and
the Finance Act 2008 had declared the said amendments as unlawful and unconstitutional and struck
them down. Howeyer in the month of March 2013, a larger bench of the Sindh High Court (SHC) in
various constitutidnal petitions declared that amendments brouglit in the WWF Ordinance, 1971 through
the Finance Act, 2006 and the Finance Act 2008, do not suffer from any constitutional or legal infirmity
and overruled a smgle-member LHC bench judgement issued in August 2011. However, the
Honourable Peshawar High Court on 29 May 2014 on a petition filed by certain aggrieved parties

(other than mutual funds) have adjudicated that the ammendments introduced in the Worker's Welfare
Fund Ordinance, 1’;971 through the Finance Act of 1996 and 2009 lacks the essential mandate to be
introduced and pas§ed through the money bill under the Coustitution of Pakistan and hence have been
declared as ultra \"/\ifé’s the Constitution.

However, as per the adv1ce of legal counsel of Mutuai Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), the
stay granted to CIS (as mentioned in the first paragraph) remains intact and the constitution petitions

filed by the CIS to‘challenge the Workers Welfare Fund contribution have not been affected by the
SHC Judgment

As’thie matter relatmg to levy of WWF is curretly pending in the Court, the Management Company, as
a matter of prudence and abundant caution, h:s decided to maintain the provision of entire liability of
Rs. 1.918 million (2013 Rs. 1.542 million) *1 these financial statements. If the above recognition had

not been made, the net asset value per unit «:f the Scheme would have been higher by Rs. 0.96 per unit
(2013: 0.72 per umt)

13.2  During the current year an amount of R.5. 0.567 million (2013: 0.337 million) was charged in the
income statement on account of sales t x on Management fee levied through Sindh Sales Tax Services
Act, 2011 effective from 01 July 201" This amount is payable to the Management Company who then
pays it to the Government of Sindh. ' ‘
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14.

18.

15.1

16.

As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, the Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on
the remuneration of the Management Company has been applied effective from 13 June 2013. The
Management Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial
sales tax, further levy of FED may result in double taxation, which doesn't appear to be the spirit of the
law. A stay order against the collection have been granted by the Honourable High Court of Sindh on a
petition filed by the‘ Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

In view of the pendmg decision, as a matter of abundant caution, the Management Company has
charged Rs. 0. 489 mllllon (2013: 0.032 million) to the Fund during the year on account of FED.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit fee

Half-yearly review fee

Fee for review of code of corporate governance
Other certification

Out of pocketrexpengies

BANK, SETTLEMENT, BROKERAGE AND
OTHER CHARGES

Brokerage expense

Sindh sales tax on management remuneration
Central depository system charges

National clearing and settlement system charges
Charity expense . |

FED on management Temuneration

Others

13.2

15.1
13.2

2014

2013

(Rupees in '000)

200 200
150 100
75 75

50 50

83 66
558 491
3,558 3,756
567 709
118 30
232 257
10 64
489 32
677 775
5,651 5,652

N
Represent the gllocati,pn from the dividend income as per the guidelines given by the Shariah Advisor of

the fund.

3
'NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Total units in issue at beginning of the year
Issued during the yez{r

Bonus units issued !

Redemptions during the year

Total units in issue at the end of the year

Face value of the unit‘iys Rs. 50 each.

s

{(Number of Units)
2,148,480 2,022,577
1,628,674 4,278,209

29,248 2,508

(1,801,000) (4,154,814)
2,005,402 2,148,480




18.

18.1

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part I of the Second Schedule of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting
income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst
the unit holders. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, the fund is required to distribute 90% of the net accounting income
other than unrealised capital gains to the unit holders. Since the management has distributed the income
earned by the Fund 'during the year to the unit holders in the manner as explained above, accordingly no
provision for taxatlon has been made in these financial statements. Refer note 22 for the details of
distribution.

TRANSACTION S ITH THE RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected personsl/ related parties include Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited being the
Mahégement ompany, MCB Financial Services Limited being the trustee, Pak Oman Investment
Company Limited which is the holding company of the Management Company, other funds managed
by the Management Company, associated companies (if any) of the management company / holding
company of the management company, entities in which the above parties or their connected persons
have a material interest, Key Management Personnel and includes entities holding 10% or more units
of the Fund as at 30 June 2014 or during the period. It also includes the staff retirement funds of the
above related pames / connected person. However, during the period no transactions took place with
the the key management personnel during the period.

Remuneration to th;éManagement Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the
provisions of the N:dn-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and Trust
Deed respectively eiéidisclosed in note 11 and 12. Sindh sales tax and FED on remuneration of the
Management is dxsclosed in note 13.2. Purchase and redemptions of the Fund's units by related parties
/ connected persons are recorded at applicable net asset value per unit. Other transactions are in
accordance with the agreed terms.

Transactions and bﬁlénces with related parties are as follows:

Transactions duriﬁg the year 2014 2013
S ‘if“{f’*" (Rupees in '000)
Pak Oman Asset M‘anagement Company Limited -
Management Conipany of the Fund

(98]

Remuneration of thé/Management Company 3,054 422
MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
of the Fund '

Remuneration of the Trustee 1 16

h
th

8

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited - holding
company of Management Company

0

Dividend paid e ' 20,360 11,68
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Related parties of the Management Company

Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited -
Employees Provident Fund

Bonus units issued - 11,458 (2013: nil)

Units issued - nil (2013: 59,780)

Units redeemed - 71,238 (2013: nil)

Gain on redemption earned by the investor

Other connected persons - due to holding of more
than 10% units -

Fecto Cement Limited - Provident Fund Trust

Units issued - nil (2013: 2,443,866)

Units redeemed - nil (2013: 2,443,866)

Gain on redemption earned by the investor

Balances outstanding at the year end

Pak Oman Asset Ménagement Company Limited -

Management Company of the Fund
Remuneration payable to the Management Company
Sales load payable

MCB Financial Sé’x;vices Limited - Trustee
of the Fund »
Remuneration payable to the Trustee

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited - holding
company of Management Company
Units outstanding - 2,000,000 - 99% (2012: 2,000,000 - 99%)
Dividend payable :¢;.

b
Related parties of the Management Company

- Pak Oman Asset l}ganagement Company Limited -

Employees Provid_ént Fund
Units outstanding - nil (2013: 59,780)

v

2014

2013

(Rupees in '000)

609 -
- 3,306
4,125 -
950 -
- 141,588
- 143,297
- 1,709
181 335
218 218
10 26
106,556 126,576
18,144 -
- 3,783
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19.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction and overview

The Fund has exposure to following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit Risk

- Liquidity Risk

- Market Risk

- Operational Risk“b;

This dlsclosure presents information about the Fund’s exposure to each of the above risks. the Fund’s
objectlves pohc1es and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Fund’s management of
capital.

Risk management framework

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holders’ value. Risk is
inherent in the Fund’s activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are
primarily set up based on limits established by the management company, Fund's constitutive documents
and the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and market
environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that Fund is willing to accept. The Board of
Directors of the management company supervises the overall risk management approach within the

Fund.

The management of these risks is carried out by the Investment Committee (IC) under the policies and
procedures approved by the Board. IC is constituted by the Board of Directors of the management
company. IC is responsible to devise the investment strategy and manage the investment portfolio of the
Fund in accordance with the limits prescribed and restrictions imposed in the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, Rules, and Constitutive Documents of the Fund in
addition to the Fund's internal risk management policies.

The Fund invests primarily in a portfolio of shariah compliant income securities as per Shariah Advisor's
approval. Such investments are subject to varying degrees of risk. These risks emanate from various
factors that include, but are not limited to:

Credit risk:‘ C
Credit risk is the rlsk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund, resulting in a financial loss to the Fund. At the

year-end it a'r‘iAses ﬁtincipally from bank balances, profit / mark-up recoverable and dividend receivables
etc.

Management of credit risk

The Fund's pélicy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed, the requirements of NBFC rules and
regulations and guidelines given by SECP from time to time.

-y




Cradit risk is managed and controlled by the management company of the Fund in the following manner: -

- Where the investment committee makes an investment decision, the credit rating and credit
worthiness of the issuer is taken into account along with the financial background so as to minimise
the risk of default.

- Analyzing credit"ratings and obtaining adequate collaterals wherever appropriate / relevant.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed trades causing a loss to the Fund is mitigated by a
periodic review of the credit ratings and financial statements on a regular basis.

- Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit enhancements.

tle

Exposure to credit risk

[n summary, compared to the maximum amount included in Statement of Assets and Liabilities, the
maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June was as follows:

2014 2013
Statement Maximum Statement Maximum
of assets and exposure of assets and exposure
) e : liabilities liabilities
‘ {Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)

Bank balances (includir‘fg‘proﬁt receivable) 86,606 86,606 60,737 60.737
Investments (includingi Iifoﬁt receivable) ' 34,026 14,107 63,882 9,924
Deposits and other receivables 8,281 8,281 26,889 26,889
n 128,913 108,994 151,508 97,550

Difference in the balance as per the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and maximum exposure in
investments is due to the fact that investment in equity securities of Rs. 19.919 (2013: Rs. 53.958)
million is not exposed to credit risk.

Past due / z'mpairea% va.ssets

None ofthé ﬁnancﬁi;l assets of the Fund were past due or impaired as at 30 June 2014.
Credit ratings and Collaterals

Details of the credit;ratings of the balances with banks and profit due are as follows:

.

Bank balances
(including profit due)

30 June 30 June

Ly 2014 2013
Ratings : (% of balance)
AA : ) 2.27 88.05
A S 97.73 11.95

Total ; ’ 100 100

Above ratings are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA as of 30 June 2014,

toey
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Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit
exposure. Around 15.45% (2013: 35.61%) of the Fund’s financial assets are in listed equity securities
which are not exposed to the credit risk while the remaining portfolio of financial assets is broadly
diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating
any significant concthrations of credit risk.

Details of Fund's concentration of credit risk of financial instruments by industrial distribution are as
follows: :

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Rs ('000) (%) Rs ('000) (%)

Bank Balances ipcludiﬁg profit receivable 86,606 79.46 60,737 62.26
Cement 14,232 13.06 9,924 o 1017
Power and electricity 50 ' 0.05 - -
Oil and Gas 57 0.05 - -
Others (note 10), -, 8,050 7.39 26,889 27.56

i 108,995 100.00, 97,550 100.00

Settlement risk _

The Fund’s activitieszmay give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is
the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other
assets as contractually agreed on sale.

For the vast majority of transactions the Fund mitigates this risk by conducting settlements through a
broker to ensure that a trade is settled only when both parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement
obligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such obligations
will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the
holder’s option based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit at the time of redemption calculated in
accordance with the Fund’s constitutive document and guidelines laid down by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund's policy is to'manage this risk by investing majority of its assets in investments that are traded
in an active market and can be readily disposed.

The Fund invests primarily in marketable securities and other financial instruments, which under normal
market conditions are readily convertible to cash. As a result, the Fund may be able to liquidate quickly

its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity

ber™ |




requirement. The present settlement system is a T+2 system, which means that proceeds from sales (to
pay off redemptions) of holdings will be received on the second day after the sale, while redemptions

have to be paid within a period of six days from the date of the redemption request.

The Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for meeting redemption requests. The
maximum amount'available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of total asscts at
the time of bonowmg with repayment within 90 days of such borrowings. No such borrowings were

made during the year

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the option to withhold daily redemption
requests in excess d‘ften percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption
requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until
the outstanding redemptlon requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue.

However, during the year no such option was exercised or considered necessary.

)

Maturity analysis for Jfinancial liabilities

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to contractual maturity date and represents the undiscounted

cash flows. The amounts in the table are the gross nominal undiscounted cash flows.

i
R

‘ Carrying Less than Within Total
30 June 2014 “lr . amount 1 month 3 months
. (Rupees)

Non-derivative lzabzlmes (at amortised cost)
Remuneration payablu to the Management

Company ‘ 181 181 - 181
Remuneration payable tdzti]e Trustee 10 10 - 10
Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan) 123 - 123 123
Accrued expenses and other . .

liabilities (excluding WWF) . 19,837 19,837 - 19,837

20,151 20,028 123 20,15t

Unit holders' fund 106,844 106,844 . 106,844
30 June 2013
Non-derivative li'ébilities’" fat amortised cost)
Remuneration payable to the Management
" Company " 335 335 . 335
Remuneration payable to the Trustee 26 26 - 20
Annual fee payable 'to Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan 134 - 134 134
Accrued expenses and oth_ci; .

liabilities (excluding WWF) 13,498 13,498 - 13,498

13,993 13,859 134 13,993

Unit holders' fund 135973 135,973 - 135,973

Above financial liabilities do not carry any mark-up.

et




19.3.1

19.3.1.1

19.3.1.2

Marker risk

Marker risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign

-exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s / issuer’s credit standing)

will effect the Fund’s income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Management of market risks

The Manaéemch‘t Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable sccurities
by following the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the
Investment Commxttee and regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments equals their fair values.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

As the Fund has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Fund’s income and operating cash flows
are substantlally mdependent of changes in market interest rates. The management company
through mvestment committee monitors the Fund's overall interest

At30] u'n"e 2014!,'\details of the interest rate profile of the Fund's interest bearing financial assets
were as follows:

2014 2013
Variable_ rate ir}x{sﬁtruments v (Rupees in '000)
Bank balances - m proﬁt and loss sharing accounts 86,101 60,236
Sukuk cemﬁcates at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition 12,371 1,137
' 98,472 61,373

Cash flow Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at 30 June 20‘14, the Fund holds sukuk certificates which are classified as fair value through
profit or loss - upon initial recognition, exposing the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. In case of
50 basis points increase / decrease in profit rates on 30 June 2014, with all other variables remain
constant, th? net’l‘l;{ssets would be higher / lower by Rs. 0.492 million (2013: Rs. 0.307 million).

ke




19.3.1.3 A summary of the Fund’s interest rate gap position, categorised by the earlier of contractual
re-pricing or maturity date is as follows:

Mark-up/ Upto one  Three months Total

profit rate month to one year
30 June 2013 (%) e (Rupees in '000) =---mveem-nn-
Assets
Bank balances ' 4.99 to 8.5 86,101 - 86,101
Investments - 10.03 to 11.59 - - 12,371 12,371
Total assets ! 86,101 12,371 98,472
30 June 2013
Assets :
Bank balances 51t010.8 60,236 - 60,236
Investments : 10.87 to 13.47 - 8,320 8.320
Total asscts ‘ 60,2306 8,320 68.556

None of the financial liabilities of the Fund are interest bearing.
19.3.2  Equity price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or
its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market.

The Fund also manages its exposure to price risk by analysing the investment portfolio by industrial
sectors and benchmarking the sector weighting to that of the KSE 100 Index. The Fund's policy is to
concentrate the investment portfolio in sectors where management believes that the Fund can
maximise the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed. The table below is a
summary of the significant sector concentrations within the equity portfolio. At 30 June 2014, the
Fund's exposure to the equity investments was as follows:

2014 _ 2013

(Rupees in '000)

Held for trading inveetments 19,919 53,958

In case of 50 basis point increase / decrease in market value on 30 June 2014, with all other
variables remain constant, the net assets of the Fund would increase / decrease by Rs. 0.035 (2013:
Rs. 0.345) million. This is based on the assumption that the fair value of the Fund's portfolio moves
according to their historical beta relationship with Karachi Stock Exchange 100 Index.

The composition of thé Fund's investment portfolio of shares and its beta relationship with Karachi 3
Stock Exchange 100 Index are expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis :
prepared as of 30 June 2014 is not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of ’
future movements in ghare prices.

19.4 Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the processes technology and mfrastructure supportmg the Fund’s operatxons either internally
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- credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
- generally accepted standards of investment management behaviour. Operational risks arise from all
) of the Fund’s activities.
- The Fund’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and
damage to'its reputation while achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors.
—_ The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk
rests with the board of directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:
- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between vanous functions, roles and
responsxbxhtxes
- req'uirelneﬁts for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
A, H
- - compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- - documentation of controls and procedures;
= 2 requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of
- controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
= - ethical and business standards;
- - risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
N 19.5 Unit holder's fund risk management
| Management's objective when managing unit holders' funds is to safeguard the Fund's ability to
b continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide optimum returns to its unit holders’ and
to ensure reasonable safety of unit holders' funds.
- The Fund manages its investment portfolio and other assets by monitoring return on net assets and
_ makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in markets* conditions. The capital structure depends
on the issuance and redemption of units and with effect from 1 July 2012 the Fund is subject to
- maintain minimum fund size of 100 million at all times as per the requirement of the NBFC
o xegulatxon ‘
= 19.6  ~ Fair value of financial instruments
; _ The Fund’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in note 5.1
‘ 4
e The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
Lo significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:
“; Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
- assets or liabilities.

]
3
1
£
b

{

Level 2: Faxr value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level |
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3: Faiﬁrf value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
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20.1

30 June 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ~ Total
(Rupees in'000)

Financial assets at fair value

through profit and loss
Equity Securities 19,919 - - 19,919
Debt securities- : - 12,371 - 12,371
‘ 19,919 12,371 - 32,290
M
Financial assets at fair value
through prof fand loss
Equity Securities 53,958 - - 53,958
Debt securities - 1,137 7,183 8,320 .
53,958 1,137 7,183 62,278

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for
fair value measurements in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

2014 2013
(Rupees in '000)

- ‘Opening balance ' 7,183 66,019
Redemption during the year (2,000) (2,000)
Sale during the year - (55,042)
Reversal of provision / (provision) made during the year 10,775 (1,794)
Unrealised loss on revaluation (3,587) -
Transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 during the year (12,371) -
Closing balance : - - 7,183

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The information regarding unit holding pattern, top brokers, members of the Investment Committee,
Fund manager, meetings of the Board of Directors of the management company and rating of the
Fund and the management company are as follows:

List of top ten brokers in order of percentage 2014 2013
of commission (Percentage)
Rafi Securities (Private) Limited 12.33 9.54
DJM Securities (Private) Limited 12.17 13.38
. .Pear] Securities (Private) Limited v 11.61 10.55
Invest and Finance Securities Limited 11.20 ~ 6.06
Taurus Securities Limited 11.17 8.11
Foundation S;éCurities (Private) Limited . 9.78 8.92
Adam Securities Limited 6.51 -
Standard Capital (Private) Limited 5.48 5.18
Arif Habib Securities Limited 5.16 8.14
Maniar Financials , 4.76 -
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20.2  Performance table
- 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Total net assets value - Rupeces in '000 106,844 135,973 " 118,131 130,365 109.665
= Net assets value per unit - Rupees 53.28 63.29 58.41 63.38 52.77
- Net income for the year - Rupees in '000 18,527 23,026 12,443 24,096 2,341
- Income distribution - Rupees in ‘000 » 18,186 21,872 11,812 22,892 2,341
Distribution per unit = Rupees 92.07 10,18 584 11.13 [.13
- Selling price as at 30:,.)ilunc - Rupces 54.58 64.93 59.90 65.00 5442
- Repurchase price as at' 30 June - Rupees 53.22 63.31 58.41 63.38 52.77
Highest scllingl pricc&@iuring the year - Rupees - 66.19 60.69 65.49 56.63
Lowest repurchase price during the year - Rupees 54.39 51.60 52.10 50.61 49.39
- Last five Last four Last three Last two Last one
years years years years year
- Average annual return of the Fund 15.81% 10.95% 13.55% 14.02% 8.36%
- The income distribution has been shown against the year to which they relate although these were
declared and distributed subsequently to the year end.
- Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance, and that unit prices and
- investment returns may go down, as well as up.
The portfolio composition of the Fund has been disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements.
- 20.3  Unit holding pattern of the Fund
. Category , No. of Unit Unitsheld  Investment % of total
= Folders _ amount
- (Rupees in '000)
30 June 2014
- 4 Individuals N 26 5,402 288 0.27
- Associated companies 1 2,000,000 106,556 99.73
27 2,005,402 106,844 100.00
— i
- 30 June 2013
o Individuals N 26 88,699 4,722 4.13
Associated companies 2 2,059,780 109,647 95.87
- 28 2,148,479 114,368 100.00




20.4  Particulars of the Fund Manager and Investment Committee
Name of Fund Manager . Qualification Other Funds managed

Mr. Ahmed Nabeel ; MBA Pak Oman Advantage Asset Allocation Fund
Pak Oman Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Following are the members of the investment committee of the Management Company:

Name of members. ;. .- Designation: =<7 & e e Qualification Years of expericnce
Ms. Hina Ghazanfar Chief Executive Officer MBA 13
Mr. Ahmed Nabeel Chief Investment Advisor MBA 23
Mr. Malik Faiz Rasool Equity Trader : Intermediate 12

20.5 Détlls of attendance at meetings of Board of Directors of the Management Company

30 June 2014

Name of Directors Designati  Meeting 04 21 22 14 12 25 06 31 28 26
on Attended | July October October November December February  March March April June
201° 2013 2013 2013 2013 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
H. E. Yahya Bin Said Bin
Abdullah Al-Jabri Chairman 8 x v v v v v v 4 v x
Agha Ahmed Shah, Esq. Director 8 v’ x x v v v v v v v
Mr. Humayun Murad Director 8 v v v v v x v v x v
Mr. Parveiz Usman Director 3 v x x x x x v v x x
Mr. Sulaiman Hammad Al Harty Director 5 x x x v v v v v x x
Mr. Ali Said Ali Director 7 v 4 v x v x v x v v
Mr. Saif Said Salim Al Yazidi Director 5 v v v x x v x v x x
Ms. Hina Ghazanfar MDandCI = 10 v v 4 v v v v v v v
6 5 5 5 6 5 7 7 4 4

The above directors were re elected in the Annual General meeting held on 14 November 2013 for a term of 3 years commencing from the date the meeting was held.

few




22.

23.

RATING OF THE FUND AND THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

In accordance with criteria specified by the rating agency, the ranking of the Fund is 3-Star,
as assigned by PACRA.

JCR-VIS has assigned an AM3- rating to the Management Company which is defined as
stable management quality. '

DISTRIBUTIONS BY THE FUND

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved distribution of Rs.

9.0720 per unit (on'27 June 2014) for the year ended 30 June 2014 amounting to Rs. 18.186
(2013: Rs. 21.87) million in total. These financial statements includes the effect of the above
interim distribution as well as the final distribution for the year end 2013 which was approved
and paid (as applicable) during the year.

GENERAL
3N SEP 201

These financial statements were authorised for issue on by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.

o,

For Pak Oman Asset Management Company Limited
(Management Company)

ChiefExeu{kivei_ fficer




